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Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year balances to conform with 
the current year’s presentation and to account for the prior year restatement.

8



9



assigned

10



11



12



CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Governmental
Activities

Assets:
Cash and investments (Note 3) 11,685,080$     
Receivables:

Accounts 538,916            
Accrued interest 74,117              
Due from employees 7,424                
Due from other governments 750,061            

Prepaid costs 50,007              
Cash and investments - restricted (Note 3) 1,025                
Capital assets, not being depreciated (Note 5) 5,982,376         
Capital assets, net of depreciation (Note 5) 12,959,054       

Total Assets 32,048,060       

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred charge on refunding 103,094            
Pension deferrals (Note 9) 4,803,806         

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,906,900         

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 555,382            
Accrued liabilities 224,238            
Accrued interest 36,721              
Unearned revenue 328,782            
Deposits payable 45,231              
Compensated absences, due within one year (Note 6) 259,249            
Bonds payable, due within one year (Note 7) 75,000              
Capital leases, due within one year (Note 7) 68,105              
Claims payable, due within one year (Note 12) 323,499            
Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences (Note 6) 116,437            
Bonds payable (Note 7) 3,518,423         
Capital leases (Note 7) 69,362              
Claims payable (Note 12) 250,000            
Total other post-employment benefits liability (Note 10) 4,712,480         
Net pension liability (Note 9) 18,853,613       

Total Liabilities 29,436,522       

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Pension deferrals (Note 9) 1,599,615         

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,599,615         

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 15,314,659       
Restricted for:

Cable television 78,281              
Transportation 747,028            
Public safety 241,257            
Air quality 99,565              
Parks 183,952            

Unrestricted (10,745,919)      
Total Net Position 5,918,823$       

JUNE 30, 2019

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

 Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 
Changes in
Net Position 

Operating Capital
Charges for Contributions Contributions Governmental

Expenses Services and Grants and Grants Activities
Functions/Programs:
Governmental Activities:

General government 3,134,764$       830,942$          -$                      -$                     (2,303,822)$      
Public safety 6,555,558         915,532            271,849            -                       (5,368,177)        
Community development 985,825            2,548                -                        -                       (983,277)           
Recreation and community services 1,745,536         937,385            -                        -                       (808,151)           
Public works 2,416,255         166,592            170,339            254,260           (1,825,064)        
Interest and fiscal charges 142,353            -                        -                        -                       (142,353)           

Total Governmental Activities 14,980,291$     2,852,999$       442,188$          254,260$         (11,430,844)      

General Revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose 3,945,959          
Utility users taxes 1,967,627          
Transient occupancy taxes 159,764             
Sales taxes 3,597,155          
Franchise taxes 687,539             
Business licenses taxes 684,310             
Other taxes 557,443             

Investment earnings 271,249             
Other 115,865             

Total General Revenues 11,986,911        
Change in Net Position 556,067             

Net Position, Beginning of the Year 5,362,756          
Net Position, End of the Year 5,918,823$        

Program Revenues

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS   
JUNE 30, 2019

Capital 
Projects Fund

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds
Assets:
Cash and investments (Note 3) 8,606,005$       178,238$          1,159,936$       9,944,179$       
Receivables:

Accounts 505,467            -                        11,184              516,651            
Accrued interest 74,117              -                        -                        74,117              
Due from employees 7,424                -                        -                        7,424                
Due from other governments 653,839            -                        96,222              750,061            

Due from other funds (Note 4) 3,885                -                        -                        3,885                
Prepaid costs 48,389              -                        -                        48,389              
Cash and investments - restricted (Note 3) -                        -                        174                   174                   

Total Assets 9,899,126$       178,238$          1,267,516$       11,344,880$     

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balance:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 428,606$          -$                      27,919$            456,525$          
Accrued liabilities 224,238            -                        -                        224,238            
Unearned revenues 192,003            136,779            -                        328,782            
Deposits payable 43,322              -                        1,909                45,231              
Due to other funds (Note 4) -                        -                        3,885                3,885                

Total Liabilities 888,169            136,779            33,713              1,058,661         

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues 170,339            -                        -                        170,339            

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 170,339            -                        -                        170,339            

Fund Balance:
Nonspendable:

Prepaid costs 48,389              -                        -                        48,389              
Employee loans 7,424                -                        -                        7,424                

Restricted:
Cable television -                        -                        78,281              78,281              
Transportation -                        41,459              535,230            576,689            
Public safety -                        -                        241,257            241,257            
Air quality -                        -                        99,565              99,565              
Parks -                        -                        183,952            183,952            

Committed:
Capital projects -                        -                        117                   117                   
Emergencies 3,607,491         -                        -                        3,607,491         

Assigned:
Other post-employment benefits 500,000            -                        -                        500,000            
PERS reserves 3,620,000         -                        -                        3,620,000         
Capital projects -                        -                        99,286              99,286              
Development Projects 469,450            -                        -                        469,450            

Unassigned 587,864            -                        (3,885)               583,979            
Total Fund Balance 8,840,618         41,459              1,233,803         10,115,880       
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balance 9,899,126$       178,238$          1,267,516$       11,344,880$     

Traffic 
Improvement

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Total fund balance - governmental funds 10,115,880$     

18,324,199       

Compensated absences (375,686)$         
Bonds payable (3,593,423)        
Claims payable (250,000)           
Other post-employment benefits liability (4,712,480)        
Net pension liability (18,853,613)      (27,785,202)      

103,094            

(34,192)             

Pension plan contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,634,419         
Changes in actuarial assumptions for pension plans 1,992,836         
Differences between expected and actual experiences in pension plans 557,032            
Net difference between expected and actual earnings on pension plan investments 111,207            
Adjustments due to differences in proportions for pension plans 508,312            4,803,806         

Changes in actuarial assumptions for pension plans (381,897)           
Differences between expected and actual experiences in pension plans (118,312)           
Adjustments due to differences in proportions for pension plans (298,238)           
Differences in the proportionate share contributions (801,168)           (1,599,615)        

170,339            

1,820,514         

Net Position of Governmental Activities 5,918,823$       

Certain revenues in the governmental funds are deferred because they are not collected
within the prescribed time period after year-end. However, on the accrual basis, they
are included as revenue in the government-wide statements.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge garage costs; technology
replacement costs; police capital expenditures; facilities, streets, parks, and pool capital
expenditures; and self-insurance costs to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of
the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net
position.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. The following is net of the internal service funds' capital
assets of $617,231.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period, and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds. The following is net of the internal service funds' long-term
liabilities of $460,966.

The deferred charge on refunding is not a financial resource and, therefore, is not
reported in the funds.

Accrued interest on long-term debt does not require current financial resources.
Therefore, accrued interest is not reported as a liability in the governmental funds'
balance sheet.

Deferred outflows of resources for pensions and other post-employment benefits are not
available resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Deferred inflows of resources for pensions and other post-employment benefits do not
require current financial resources.  Therefore, they are not reported in the funds.

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS   
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental

     General    Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes 11,016,039$     -$                      583,758$          11,599,797$      
Licenses and permits 830,942            -                        -                        830,942             
Intergovernmental 128,796            -                        165,002            293,798             
Charges for services 954,139            19,060              147,532            1,120,731          
Investment earnings 244,623            3,705                22,921              271,249             
Fines and forfeitures 882,257            -                        18,201              900,458             
Program revenues -                        -                        233,179            233,179             
Miscellaneous 109,064            -                        6,801                115,865             

Total Revenues 14,165,860       22,765              1,177,394         15,366,019        

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 2,252,878         -                        46,619              2,299,497          
Public safety 5,886,413         -                        -                        5,886,413          
Community development 928,515            -                        -                        928,515             
Recreation and community services 1,589,783         -                        -                        1,589,783          
Public works 1,894,704         343                   168,231            2,063,278          

Capital outlay 128,084            -                        204,076            332,160             
Debt service:

Principal retirement -                        -                        70,000              70,000               
Interest and fiscal charges -                        -                        138,794            138,794             

Total Expenditures 12,680,377       343                   627,720            13,308,440        
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures 1,485,483         22,422              549,674            2,057,579          

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in (Note 4) 391,791            -                        205,000            596,791             
Transfers out (Note 4) (765,338)           -                        (391,791)           (1,157,129)         

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (373,547)           -                        (186,791)           (560,338)            
Net Change in Fund Balances 1,111,936         22,422              362,883            1,497,241          

Fund Balance, Beginning of the Year 7,728,682         19,037              870,920            8,618,639          
Fund Balance, End of the Year 8,840,618$       41,459$            1,233,803$       10,115,880$      

Capital
Projects Fund

Traffic 
Improvement

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 17



CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net Change in Fund Balances - total governmental funds 1,497,241$       

Capital outlay 332,160$          
Other maintenance activities included in capital outlay above (7,810)               
Depreciation expense (net of internal service funds of $110,752) (350,587)           (26,237)             

170,339            

Principal repayment on bonds 70,000              
Amortization of bond premium 4,375                
Amortization of deferred charge on refunding (5,745)               68,630              

Change in accrued interest on long-term debt 350                   
Change in compensated absences 144,802            
Pension expense (1,006,320)        
Other post-employment benefits expense (195,135)           (1,056,303)        

(97,603)             

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 556,067$          

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has
any affect on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these
amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the
net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. The
following is net the internal service funds' repayments on long-term debt of $68,872.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources, and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental
funds.

The internal service funds are used by management to charge garage costs; technology
replacement costs; police capital expenditures; facilities, streets, parks, and pool capital
expenditures; and self-insurance costs to individual funds. The net revenue of certain
activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation expense in the current period.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds.

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2019

Governmental
Activities-

Internal
Service Funds

Assets:
Current:

Cash and investments (Note 3) 1,740,901 $           
Accounts receivable 22,265                
Prepaid costs 1,618                  
Cash and investments - restricted (Note 3) 851                     

Total Current Assets 1,765,635           

Noncurrent:
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation (Note 5) 617,231              

Total Noncurrent Assets 617,231              
Total Assets 2,382,866           

Liabilities:
Current:

Accounts payable 98,857                
Accrued interest 2,529                  
Accrued claims and judgments 323,499              
Capital leases (Note 7) 68,105                

Total Current Liabilities 492,990              

Noncurrent:
Capital leases (Note 7) 69,362                

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 69,362                
Total Liabilities 562,352              

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 480,615              
Unrestricted 1,339,899           

Total Net Position 1,820,514 $           

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Governmental
Activities-

Internal
Service Funds

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services:

Garage 304,026$             
Technology replacement 143,762               

Miscellaneous 38,578                 
Total Operating Revenues 486,366               

Operating Expenses:
Personnel services 13,885                 
Supplies and materials 161,123               
Outside services 130,188               
Claims expense 725,820               
Depreciation expense 110,752               

Total Operating Expenses 1,141,768            
Operating Loss (655,402)              

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest expense (2,539)                  

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (2,539)                  
Loss Before Transfers (657,941)              

Transfers in (Note 4) 560,338               
Change in Net Position (97,603)                

Net Position, Beginning of the Year 1,918,117            
Net Position, End of the Year 1,820,514$          

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Activities-
Internal

Service Funds
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from interfund charges for garage services 304,026$            
Receipts from interfund charges for technology replacement services 143,762              
Payments to suppliers and service providers (291,916)             
Payments to employees for salaries and benefits (13,885)               
Cash received from (payments to) others (662,507)             

Net Cash Provided Used for Operating Activities (520,520)             

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers from other funds 560,338              

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 560,338              

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (35,590)               
Principal paid on capital debt (66,872)               
Interest paid on capital debt (3,769)                 

Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities (106,231)             
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (66,413)               

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1
(including $851 reported in restricted accounts) 1,808,165           
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year
(including $851 reported in restricted accounts) 1,741,752$         

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash 
Used for Operating Activities:
Operating loss (655,402)$           
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to
net cash used for operating activities:

Depreciation 110,752              
(Increase) in accounts receivable (22,265)               
Decrease in prepaid expense 11,776                
Increase in accounts payable 63,819                
(Decrease) in claims and judgments (29,200)               

Total Adjustments 134,882              
Net Cash Used for Operating Activities (520,520)$           

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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General Fund

Traffic Improvement Fund 

Special Revenue Funds

Capital Projects Funds

Debt Service Fund

Internal Service Funds
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Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools
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Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities

contributions made after the 
measurement date adjustments 
due to differences in proportions changes in assumptions differences between 
expected and actual experiences

net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on pension plan investments

deferred charge on refunding
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changes of assumptions differences between expected and actual experiences
adjustments due to differences in proportions differences between proportionate 
share of contributions and actual contributions

unavailable revenue

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted

Unrestricted
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Nonspendable

Restricted

Committed

Assigned

Unassigned

32



33



General government

Public safety

Community development

Recreation and community services

Public works

Capital outlay

Principal retirement

Interest and fiscal charges
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deposits 

investments 
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Classic members (CalPERS members prior to 12/31/12) hired on or after  
January 1, 2013 may be placed in a different tier.
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Classic members (CalPERS members prior to 12/31/12) hired on or after  
January 1, 2013 may be placed in a different tier.
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 7,728,682$       7,728,682$       7,728,682$       -$                      
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 10,755,540       10,755,540       11,016,039       260,499            
Licenses and permits 568,470            568,470            830,942            262,472            
Intergovernmental 163,778            293,351            128,796            (164,555)           
Charges for services 866,800            866,800            954,139            87,339              
Use of money and property 73,000              73,000              244,623            171,623            
Fines and forfeitures 719,300            719,300            882,257            162,957            
Miscellaneous 70,500              70,500              109,064            38,564              
Transfers in 400,000            400,000            391,791            (8,209)               

Amounts Available for Appropriations 21,346,070       21,475,643       22,286,333       810,690            

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
General government:

City Council 74,330              78,330              68,341              9,989                
City Manager / City Clerk 710,367            750,367            738,715            11,652              
Administrative Services 734,041            734,041            713,571            20,470              
City Attorney 164,000            199,540            240,256            (40,716)             
Non-departmental 487,310            533,210            491,995            41,215              

Public safety 6,248,260         6,292,194         5,886,413         405,781            
Community development 796,419            917,384            928,515            (11,131)             
Recreation and community services 1,532,651         1,544,651         1,589,783         (45,132)             
Public works 2,035,584         2,294,752         1,894,704         400,048            
Capital outlay -                        128,084            128,084            -                        
Transfers out 765,338            765,338            765,338            -                        

Total Charges to Appropriations 13,548,300       14,237,891       13,445,715       792,176            
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 7,797,770$       7,237,752$       8,840,618$       1,602,866$       

See Accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
COST-SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER MISCELLANEOUS & SAFETY PLANS
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 1

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Measurement Date 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2014

Miscellaneous Plan:
Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.0953% 0.0920% 0.0922% 0.0901% 0.0726%
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 8,999,874$      9,127,183$      7,975,904$      6,181,642$      4,518,604$      
Covered Payroll 1,882,670$      2,067,777$      2,139,951$      2,067,219$      2,042,142$      
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as 

Percentage of Covered Payroll 478.0% 441.4% 372.7% 299.0% 221.3%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total

Pension Liability 75.3% 73.3% 74.1% 78.4% 79.8%

Safety Plan:
Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.1047% 0.0980% 0.0965% 0.0922% 0.0891%
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 9,853,739$      9,719,511$      8,351,809$      6,328,706$      5,542,493$      
Covered Payroll 2,498,046$      2,655,464$      2,534,307$      2,402,592$      2,385,017$      
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as 

Percentage of Covered Payroll 394.5% 366.0% 329.5% 263.4% 232.4%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total

Pension Liability 75.3% 73.3% 74.1% 78.4% 79.8%

Notes to the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability:

Benefit Changes:  There were no changes to benefit terms.

Changes of Assumptions: In 2019, demographic assumptions and inflation rate were changed in accordance to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review
of Actuarial Assumptions December 2017.  There were no changes to the discount rate.

1 Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB Statement No. 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2015 was the first year of
implementation, therefore only five years are shown.
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

SCHEDULE OF PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS
COST-SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER MISCELLANEOUS & SAFETY PLANS
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 1

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Miscellaneous Plan:
Actuarially Determined Contribution 706,647$       607,715$       575,534$       478,168$       228,140$       
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (706,647)        (607,715)        (575,534)        (478,168)        (228,140)        
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
Covered Payroll 1,883,036$    1,882,670$    2,067,777$    2,139,951$    2,067,219$    
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 37.5% 32.3% 27.8% 22.3% 11.0%

Safety Plan:
Actuarially Determined Contribution 927,772$       847,090$       797,034$       748,750$       605,370$       
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (927,772)        (847,090)        (797,034)        (748,750)        (605,370)        
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
Covered Payroll 2,287,551$    2,498,046$    2,655,464$    2,534,307$    2,402,592$    
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 40.6% 33.9% 30.0% 29.5% 25.2%

Funding Valuation Date:
Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method: Entry Age Normal
Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate 7.375%
Inflation 2.75%
Salary increases Varies by entry age and service
Investment rate of return 7.375%
Mortality rate table CalPERS Experience Study
Post retirement benefit COLA up to 2.75% based on purchasing power

Notes to Schedule of Plan Contributions:

June 30, 2016

1 Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only
five years are shown.
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 1

2019 2018
Measurement Date 6/30/2018 6/30/2018

Total OPEB Liability:
Service cost 175,452$        170,756$        
Interest on the total OPEB liability 157,013          166,352          
Changes in assumptions 100,644          -                      
Benefit payments (237,974)         (228,821)         

Net change in total OPEB liability 195,135          108,287          

Total OPEB Liability, Beginning of the Year 4,517,345       4,409,058       
Total OPEB Liability, End of the Year 4,712,480$     4,517,345$     

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 2 0.0% 0.0%
Covered-employee payroll 4,380,716$     4,380,716$     
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 107.6% 103.1%

Notes to Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios:

1 Historical information is required only for the measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Fiscal Year
2018 was the first year of implementation. Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years as information
becomes available.

2 The City does not hold any assets in a qualifying irrevocable trust or equivalent arrangement. As such, there is no
fiduciary net position of the plan, and the total amount of the OPEB liability is reported.

See Accompanying Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS         
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Cash and investments 232,921$            244,664$            73,992$              29,691$              
Accounts receivable -                          -                          10,922                262                     
Due from other governments 34,191                38,826                -                          -                          
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agent -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Assets 267,112$            283,490$            84,914$              29,953$              

Liabilities and Fund Balance:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 8,314$                7,058$                6,633$                -$                        
Deposits payable -                          -                          -                          -                          
Due to other funds -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Liabilities 8,314                  7,058                  6,633                  -                          

Fund Balance:
Restricted:

Cable television -                          -                          78,281                -                          
Transportation 258,798              276,432              -                          -                          
Public safety -                          -                          -                          29,953                
Air quality -                          -                          -                          -                          
Parks -                          -                          -                          -                          

Committed:
Capital projects -                          -                          -                          -                          

Assigned:
Capital projects -                          -                          -                          -                          

Unassigned -                          -                          -                          -                          
Total Fund Balance 258,798              276,432              78,281                29,953                
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 267,112$            283,490$            84,914$              29,953$              

 Office of Traffic 
Safety  Measure M  Gas Tax 

 Los Alamitos 
Television 

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agent

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Deposits payable
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:
Restricted:

Cable television
Transportation
Public safety
Air quality
Parks

Committed:
Capital projects

Assigned:
Capital projects

Unassigned
Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

        
(CONTINUED)

64,199$              25,058$              104,740$            95,576$              
-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          19,216                -                          3,989                  
-                          -                          -                          -                          

64,199$              44,274$              104,740$            99,565$              

-$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
1,909                  -                          -                          -                          

-                          -                          -                          -                          
1,909                  -                          -                          -                          

-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          

62,290                44,274                104,740              -                          
-                          -                          -                          99,565                
-                          -                          -                          -                          

-                          -                          -                          -                          

-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          

62,290                44,274                104,740              99,565                
64,199$              44,274$              104,740$            99,565$              

 Asset Seizure 
 Public Safety 
Augmentation 

 State Law 
Enforcement 

Service  Air Quality 

 Special Revenue Funds 

63



CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agent

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Deposits payable
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:
Restricted:

Cable television
Transportation
Public safety
Air quality
Parks

Committed:
Capital projects

Assigned:
Capital projects

Unassigned
Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

        

-$                        186,621$            92,279$              6,561$                
-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          
-$                        186,621$            92,279$              6,561$                

-$                        2,669$                3,245$                -$                        
-                          -                          -                          -                          

3,885                  -                          -                          -                          
3,885                  2,669                  3,245                  -                          

-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          183,952              -                          -                          

-                          -                          -                          -                          

-                          -                          89,034                6,561                  
(3,885)                 -                          -                          -                          
(3,885)                 183,952              89,034                6,561                  

-$                        186,621$            92,279$              6,561$                

 Park 
Development 

 Building 
Improvement 

 Residential 
Streets/Alleys 

 Community 
Development 
Block Grant 

Capital Projects Funds
 Special 

Revenue Funds 

64



CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agent

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Deposits payable
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:
Restricted:

Cable television
Transportation
Public safety
Air quality
Parks

Committed:
Capital projects

Assigned:
Capital projects

Unassigned
Total Fund Balance
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

     

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

117$                   3,517$                1,159,936$         
-                          -                          11,184                
-                          -                          96,222                
-                          174                     174                     

117$                   3,691$                1,267,516$         

-$                        -$                        27,919$              
-                          -                          1,909                  
-                          -                          3,885                  
-                          -                          33,713                

-                          -                          78,281                
-                          -                          535,230              
-                          -                          241,257              
-                          -                          99,565                
-                          -                          183,952              

117                     -                          117                     

-                          3,691                  99,286                
-                          -                          (3,885)                 

117                     3,691                  1,233,803           
117$                   3,691$                1,267,516$         

Total

 Debt Service  Capital Outlay 

 Debt Service 
Funds 

 Capital Projects 
Funds 
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

        

 
Revenues:
Taxes -$                        446,436$            26,315$              -$                        
Intergovernmental -                          -                          -                          -                          
Charges for services -                          -                          -                          -                          
Investment earnings 4,256                  4,258                  1,849                  477                     
Fines and forfeitures -                          -                          -                          18,201                
Program revenues 233,179              -                          -                          -                          
Miscellaneous -                          -                          6,500                  -                          

Total Revenues 237,435              450,694              34,664                18,678                

Expenditures:
Current:

General government -                          -                          46,619                -                          
Public works 17,288                55,862                -                          -                          

Capital outlay 114,431              54,842                -                          -                          
Debt service:

Principal retirement -                          -                          -                          -                          
Interest and fiscal charges -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Expenditures 131,719              110,704              46,619                -                          

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 105,716              339,990              (11,955)               18,678                

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in -                          -                          -                          -                          
Transfers out -                          (185,000)             -                          (5,000)                 

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) -                          (185,000)             -                          (5,000)                 

Net Change in Fund Balances 105,716              154,990              (11,955)               13,678                

Fund Balance, Beginning of the Year 153,082              121,442              90,236                16,275                
Fund Balance (Deficit), End of the Year 258,798$            276,432$            78,281$              29,953$              

Special Revenue Funds

 Measure M  Gas Tax 
 Los Alamitos 

Television 
 Office of Traffic 

Safety 

66



CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

 
Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Fines and forfeitures
Program revenues
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Public works

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance, Beginning of the Year
Fund Balance (Deficit), End of the Year

        
(CONTINUED)

-$                        111,007$            -$                        -$                        
868                     -                          148,747              15,387                

-                          -                          -                          -                          
1,402                  546                     1,796                  1,933                  

-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          

301                     -                          -                          -                          
2,571                  111,553              150,543              17,320                

-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          

-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          

2,571                  111,553              150,543              17,320                

-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          (91,791)               (110,000)             -                          

-                          (91,791)               (110,000)             -                          
2,571                  19,762                40,543                17,320                

59,719                24,512                64,197                82,245                
62,290$              44,274$              104,740$            99,565$              

Special Revenue Funds

 Asset Seizure 
 Public Safety 
Augmentation 

 State Law 
Enforcement 

Service  Air Quality 
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

 
Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Fines and forfeitures
Program revenues
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Public works

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance, Beginning of the Year
Fund Balance (Deficit), End of the Year

        

 Special 
Revenue Fund 

-$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          147,532              -                          -                          
-                          3,616                  2,365                  143                     
-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          151,148              2,365                  143                     

-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          95,081                -                          -                          

3,916                  2,480                  28,407                -                          

-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          

3,916                  97,561                28,407                -                          

(3,916)                 53,587                (26,042)               143                     

-                          -                          -                          -                          
-                          -                          -                          -                          

-                          -                          -                          -                          
(3,916)                 53,587                (26,042)               143                     

31                       130,365              115,076              6,418                  
(3,885)$               183,952$            89,034$              6,561$                

 Community 
Development 
Block Grant 

 Park 
Development 

 Building 
Improvement 

 Residential 
Streets/Alleys 

Capital Projects Funds
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

 
Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Fines and forfeitures
Program revenues
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General government
Public works

Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance, Beginning of the Year
Fund Balance (Deficit), End of the Year

    

 Capital Projects 
Fund 

 Debt Service 
Fund 

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds

-$                        -$                        583,758$            
-                          -                          165,002              
-                          -                          147,532              

117                     163                     22,921                
-                          -                          18,201                
-                          -                          233,179              
-                          -                          6,801                  

117                     163                     1,177,394           

-                          -                          46,619                
-                          -                          168,231              
-                          -                          204,076              

-                          70,000                70,000                
-                          138,794              138,794              
-                          208,794              627,720              

117                     (208,631)             549,674              

-                          205,000              205,000              
-                          -                          (391,791)             

-                          205,000              (186,791)             
117                     (3,631)                 362,883              

-                          7,322                  870,920              
117$                   3,691$                1,233,803$         

Total

 Capital Outlay  Debt Service 
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MEASURE M
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 153,082$          153,082$          153,082$          -$                      
Resources (Inflows):
Investment earnings 400                   400                   4,256                3,856                
Program revenues 225,000            225,000            233,179            8,179                

Amounts Available for Appropriations 378,482            378,482            390,517            12,035              

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
Public works 27,000              27,000              17,288              9,712                
Capital outlay 315,412            323,417            114,431            208,986            

Total Charges to Appropriations 342,412            350,417            131,719            218,698            
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 36,070$            28,065$            258,798$          230,733$          
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GAS TAX
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 121,442$          121,442$          121,442$          -$                      
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 500,391            500,391            446,436            (53,955)             
Investment earnings 100                   100                   4,258                4,158                

Amounts Available for Appropriations 621,933            621,933            572,136            (49,797)             

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
Public works 95,000              95,000              55,862              39,138              
Capital outlay 328,403            337,259            54,842              282,417            
Transfers out 185,000            185,000            185,000            -                        

Total Charges to Appropriations 608,403            617,259            295,704            321,555            
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 13,530$            4,674$              276,432$          271,758$          
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
LOS ALAMITOS TELEVISION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 90,236$            90,236$            90,236$            -$                      
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 30,238              30,238              26,315              (3,923)               
Investment earnings 700                   700                   1,849                1,149                
Miscellaneous 6,500                6,500                6,500                -                        

Amounts Available for Appropriations 127,674            127,674            124,900            (2,774)               

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
General government 41,296              50,746              46,619              4,127                

Total Charges to Appropriations 41,296              50,746              46,619              4,127                
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 86,378$            76,928$            78,281$            1,353$              
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 16,275$            16,275$            16,275$            -$                      
Resources (Inflows):
Investment earnings -                        -                        477                   477                   
Fines and forfeitures 5,000                5,000                18,201              13,201              

Amounts Available for Appropriations 21,275              21,275              34,953              13,678              

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
Transfers out 5,000                5,000                5,000                -                        

Total Charges to Appropriations 5,000                5,000                5,000                -                        
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 16,275$            16,275$            29,953$            13,678$            
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
ASSET SEIZURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 59,719$            59,719$            59,719$            -$                      
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental -                        -                        868                   868                   
Investment earnings 500                   500                   1,402                902                   
Miscellaneous -                        -                        301                   301                   

Amounts Available for Appropriations 60,219              60,219              62,290              2,071                
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 60,219$            60,219$            62,290$            2,071$              
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
PUBLIC SAFETY AUGMENTATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 24,512$            24,512$            24,512$            -$                      
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 105,000            105,000            111,007            6,007                
Investment earnings 100                   100                   546                   446                   

Amounts Available for Appropriations 129,612            129,612            136,065            6,453                

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
Transfers out 100,000            100,000            91,791              8,209                

Total Charges to Appropriations 100,000            100,000            91,791              8,209                
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 29,612$            29,612$            44,274$            14,662$            

76



CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
STATE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 64,197$            64,197$            64,197$            -$                      
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental 110,000            110,000            148,747            38,747              
Investment earnings 50                     50                     1,796                1,746                

Amounts Available for Appropriations 174,247            174,247            214,740            40,493              

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
Transfers out 110,000            110,000            110,000            -                        

Total Charges to Appropriations 110,000            110,000            110,000            -                        
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 64,247$            64,247$            104,740$          40,493$            
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
AIR QUALITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 82,245$            82,245$            82,245$            -$                      
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental 14,750              14,750              15,387              637                   
Investment earnings 400                   400                   1,933                1,533                

Amounts Available for Appropriations 97,395              97,395              99,565              2,170                

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
Public works 35,000              35,000              -                        35,000              

Total Charges to Appropriations 35,000              35,000              -                        35,000              
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 62,395$            62,395$            99,565$            37,170$            
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 31$                   31$                   31$                   -$                      
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental 135,000            135,000            -                        (135,000)           
Investment earnings 100                   100                   -                        (100)                  

Amounts Available for Appropriations 135,131            135,131            31                     (135,100)           

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
Capital outlay 135,000            135,000            3,916                131,084            

Total Charges to Appropriations 135,000            135,000            3,916                131,084            
Budgetary Fund Balance (Deficit), June 30 131$                 131$                 (3,885)$             (4,016)$             
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
PARK DEVELOPMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 130,365$          130,365$          130,365$          -$                      
Resources (Inflows):
Charges for services 268,240            80,240              147,532            67,292              
Investment earnings 200                   200                   3,616                3,416                

Amounts Available for Appropriations 398,805            210,805            281,513            70,708              

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
Public works 70,000              97,475              95,081              2,394                
Capital outlay 210,000            113,000            2,480                110,520            

Total Charges to Appropriations 280,000            210,475            97,561              112,914            
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 118,805$          330$                 183,952$          183,622$          
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUILDING IMPROVEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 115,076$          115,076$          115,076$          -$                      
Resources (Inflows):
Investment earnings 100                   100                   2,365                2,265                

Amounts Available for Appropriations 115,176            115,176            117,441            2,265                

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
Capital outlay 100,000            100,000            28,407              71,593              

Total Charges to Appropriations 100,000            100,000            28,407              71,593              
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 15,176$            15,176$            89,034$            73,858$            
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
RESIDENTIAL STREETS/ALLEYS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 6,418$              6,418$              6,418$              -$                      
Resources (Inflows):
Investment earnings 45                     45                     143                   98                     

Amounts Available for Appropriations 6,463                6,463                6,561                98                     
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 6,463$              6,463$              6,561$              98$                   
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DEBT SERVICE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1 7,322$              7,322$              7,322$              -$                      
Resources (Inflows):
Investment earnings 20                     20                     163                   143                   
Transfers in 205,000            205,000            205,000            -                        

Amounts Available for Appropriations 212,342            212,342            212,485            143                   

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
Debt service:

Principal retirement 70,000              70,000              70,000              -                        
Interest and fiscal charges 139,000            139,000            138,794            206                   

Total Charges to Appropriations 209,000            209,000            208,794            206                   
Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30 3,342$              3,342$              3,691$              349$                 
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Current:

Cash and investments 600,352$         213,422$         98,602$             
Accounts receivable -                      -                      -                         
Prepaid costs -                      1,618               -                         
Cash and investments - restricted 851                  -                      -                         

Total Current Assets 601,203           215,040           98,602               

Noncurrent:
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation 221,602           33,522             -                         

Total Noncurrent Assets 221,602           33,522             -                         
Total Assets 822,805           248,562           98,602               

Liabilities:
Current:

Accounts payable 12,352             4,810               -                         
Accrued interest 2,529               -                      -                         
Accrued claims and judgments -                      -                      -                         
Capital leases 68,105             -                      -                         

Total Current Liabilities 82,986             4,810               -                         

Noncurrent:
Capital leases 69,362             -                      -                         

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 69,362             -                      -                         
Total Liabilities 152,348           4,810               -                         

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 84,986             33,522             -                         
Unrestricted 585,471           210,230           98,602               

Total Net Position 670,457$         243,752$         98,602$             

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

Garage
Technology 

Replacement
Police Capital 
Expenditures
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Current:

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Prepaid costs
Cash and investments - restricted

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent:
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets

Liabilities:
Current:

Accounts payable
Accrued interest
Accrued claims and judgments
Capital leases

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent:
Capital leases

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Totals

224,577$         603,948$         1,740,901$      
-                      22,265             22,265             
-                      -                      1,618               
-                      -                      851                  

224,577           626,213           1,765,635        

362,107           -                      617,231           
362,107           -                      617,231           
586,684           626,213           2,382,866        

-                      81,695             98,857             
-                      -                      2,529               
-                      323,499           323,499           
-                      -                      68,105             
-                      405,194           492,990           

-                      -                      69,362             
-                      -                      69,362             
-                      405,194           562,352           

362,107           -                      480,615           
224,577           221,019           1,339,899        
586,684$         221,019$         1,820,514$      

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

Facilities, 
Streets, Parks, 

and Pool 
Capital 

Expenditures
Self Insurance 

Trust
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services:

Garage 304,026$         -$                    -$                     
Technology replacement -                      143,762           -                       

Miscellaneous -                      -                      -                       
Total Operating Revenues 304,026           143,762           -                       

Operating Expenses:
Personnel services 13,885             -                      -                       
Supplies and materials 132,029           28,960             134                   
Outside services 24,534             105,654           -                       
Claims expense -                      -                      -                       
Depreciation expense 97,479             8,380               -                       

Total Operating Expenses 267,927           142,994           134                   
Operating Income (Loss) 36,099             768                  (134)                  

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest expense (2,539)             -                      -                       

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (2,539)             -                      -                       
Income (Loss) Before Transfers 33,560             768                  (134)                  

Transfers in -                      -                      -                       
Changes in Net Position 33,560             768                  (134)                  

Net Position, Beginning of the Year 636,897           242,984           98,736              
Net Position, End of the Year 670,457$         243,752$         98,602$            

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

Garage
Technology 

Replacement
Police Capital 
Expenditures
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services:

Garage
Technology replacement

Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Personnel services
Supplies and materials
Outside services
Claims expense
Depreciation expense

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest expense

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Income (Loss) Before Transfers

Transfers in
Changes in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of the Year
Net Position, End of the Year

Totals

-$                    -$                    304,026$         
-                      -                      143,762           
-                      38,578             38,578             
-                      38,578             486,366           

-                      -                      13,885             
-                      -                      161,123           
-                      -                      130,188           
-                      725,820           725,820           

4,893               -                      110,752           
4,893               725,820           1,141,768        

(4,893)             (687,242)          (655,402)          

-                      -                      (2,539)             
-                      -                      (2,539)             

(4,893)             (687,242)          (657,941)          

-                      560,338           560,338           
(4,893)             (126,904)          (97,603)            

591,577           347,923           1,918,117        
586,684$         221,019$         1,820,514$      

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

Facilities, 
Streets, Parks, 

and Pool 
Capital 

Expenditures
Self Insurance 

Trust
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from interfund charges for garage services 304,026$         -$                    -$                    
Receipts from interfund charges for technology replacement services -                      143,762           -                      
Payments to suppliers and service providers (155,048)          (118,384)          (134)                 
Payments to employees for salaries and benefits (13,885)            -                      -                      
Cash received from (payments to) others -                      -                      -                      

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 135,093           25,378             (134)                 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers from other funds -                      -                      -                      

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities -                      -                      -                      

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (35,590)            -                      -                      
Principal paid on capital debt (66,872)            -                      -                      
Interest paid on capital debt (3,769)              -                      -                      

Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities (106,231)          -                      -                      
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 28,862             25,378             (134)                 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 (including $851 for the Garage
Fund reported in restricted accounts) 572,341           188,044           98,736             
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 (including $851 for the 
Garage Fund reported in restricted accounts) 601,203$         213,422$         98,602$           

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss) 36,099$           768$                (134)$               
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation 97,479             8,380               -                      
(Increase) in accounts receivable -                      -                      -                      
Decrease in prepaid expense -                      11,776             -                      
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 1,515               4,454               -                      
(Decrease) in claims and judgments -                      -                      -                      

Total Adjustments 98,994             24,610             -                      
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 135,093$         25,378$           (134)$               

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

Garage
Technology 

Replacement
Police Capital 
Expenditures
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS, CALIFORNIA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from interfund charges for garage services
Receipts from interfund charges for technology replacement services
Payments to suppliers and service providers
Payments to employees for salaries and benefits
Cash received from (payments to) others

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers from other funds

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt

Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July 1 (including $851 for the Garage
Fund reported in restricted accounts)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, June 30 (including $851 for the 
Garage Fund reported in restricted accounts)

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

Depreciation
(Increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease in prepaid expense
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
(Decrease) in claims and judgments

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Totals

-$                    -$                    304,026$         
-                      -                      143,762           

(18,350)            -                      (291,916)          
-                      -                      (13,885)            
-                      (662,507)          (662,507)          

(18,350)            (662,507)          (520,520)          

-                      560,338           560,338           
-                      560,338           560,338           

-                      -                      (35,590)            
-                      -                      (66,872)            
-                      -                      (3,769)              
-                      -                      (106,231)          

(18,350)            (102,169)          (66,413)            

242,927           706,117           1,808,165        

224,577$         603,948$         1,741,752$      

(4,893)$            (687,242)$        (655,402)$        

4,893               -                      110,752           
-                      (22,265)            (22,265)            
-                      -                      11,776             

(18,350)            76,200             63,819             
-                      (29,200)            (29,200)            

(13,457)            24,735             134,882           
(18,350)$          (662,507)$        (520,520)$        

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

Facilities, 
Streets, Parks, 

and Pool 
Capital 

Expenditures
Self Insurance 

Trust
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2010 2011 2012 2013
Governmental activities

Net investment in capital assets $ 12,370 $ 12,659 $ 13,143 $ 13,138
Restricted 1,533 1,500 832 841
Unrestricted 7,144 7,984 7,681 8,034

Total governmental activities net position $ 21,047 $ 22,143 $ 21,656 $ 22,013

Source: City of Los Alamitos, Finance Department

* In Fiscal Year 2014-15 the City implemented GASB Statement No. 68, which resulted in a $12.8 million
decrease to the City's net position in relation to accounting for the City's net pension liability and related
deferrals.

** In Fiscal Year 2017-18 the City implemented GASB Statement No. 75, which resulted in a $3.6 million 
 decrease to the City's net position in relation to accounting for the City's total OPEB liability. 

(amounts expressed in thousands)

CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

 (15)

 (10)

 (5)

 -

 5

 10

 15

 20

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

M
ill
io
ns

Net investment in capital assets Restricted Unrestricted
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2014 2015* 2016 2017 2018** 2019

$ 13,585 $ 13,519 $ 12,658 $ 14,156 $ 15,281 $ 15,315
878 713 1,334 764 761 1,350

8,393 (4,126) (3,828) (5,506) (10,679) (10,746)
$ 22,856 $ 10,106 $ 10,164 $ 9,414 $ 5,363 $ 5,919

Fiscal Year
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2010 2011 2012
Expenses

Governmental activities:
General government $ 2,224 $ 1,659 $ 2,376
Public safety 5,068 4,912 5,545
Community development 578 527 705
Recreation and community services 1,583 1,568 1,770
Public works 1,922 1,905 2,007
Interest and fiscal charges 156 153 150

Total governmental activites expenses 11,531 10,724 12,553

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:

Charges for services
General government 117 43 3
Public safety 618 641 511
Community development 73 150 280
Recreation and community services 1,180 1,230 1,266
Public works - - -

Operating grants 388 533 112
Capital grants and contributions 708 890 524

Total governmental activites program revenues 3,084 3,487 2,696

Net (expense)/revenue
Governmental activities (8,447) (7,237) (9,857)

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities:

Taxes
Property 2,654 2,529 3,143
Utility users tax 2,178 2,132 2,083
Transient occupancy 70 80 88
Sales 2,349 2,148 2,200
Franchise 584 595 683
Business license 574 471 618
Other 65 85 347

8,474 8,040 9,162
Motor vehicle in lieu 36 62 6
Investment income 39 27 15
Gain on Sale of property 5 140 3
Other 287 89 207

Total governmental activities 8,841 8,358 9,393

Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities $ 394 $ 1,121 $ (464)

Source: City of Los Alamitos, Finance Department

Changes in Net Position
CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(accrual basis of accounting)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$ 1,377 $ 2,223 $ 2,646 $ 2,976 $ 2,830 $ 3,517 $ 3,135
5,393 5,691 5,463 5,732 6,922 6,311 6,556

745 843 714 685 775 1,104 986
1,957 1,700 1,772 1,834 1,783 1,811 1,746
2,709 2,839 2,592 2,339 2,306 2,314 2,415

168 140 138 302 148 141 142
12,349 13,436 13,325 13,868 14,764 15,198 14,980

- 385 205 225 272 814 831
637 735 752 808 825 859 916
435 113 141 80 100 198 3

1,295 1,242 1,301 1,225 1,087 956 937
- 18 2 139 - - 167
119 323 293 398 453 151 442
349 1,739 629 530 369 391 254

2,835 4,555 3,323 3,405 3,106 3,369 3,550

(9,514) (8,881) (10,002) (10,463) (11,658) (11,829) (11,430)

3,734 2,733 2,954 3,118 3,603 3,773 3,946
2,160 2,188 2,210 2,092 2,037 2,034 1,968

104 113 132 156 159 167 160
2,117 2,836 3,064 3,357 3,160 3,336 3,597

653 689 712 709 669 691 688
694 551 563 566 609 647 684
284 334 348 251 339 429 557

9,746 9,444 9,983 10,249 10,576 11,077 11,600
5 - - - - - -

27 13 30 86 63 102 271
37 - - - - 19 -
36 267 146 185 269 182 115

9,851 9,724 10,159 10,520 10,908 11,380 11,986

$ 337 $ 843 $ 157 $ 57 $ (750) (449) $ 556

Fiscal Year
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2010 2011 2012
General Fund

Nonspendable $ 4 $ 7
Committed - -
Restricted - -
Assigned 3,250 3,250
Unassigned 4,161 4,496

Reserved $ 5 - -
Unreserved, designated 2,800 - -
Unreserved, undesignated 3,418 - -

Total General Fund 6,223 7,415 7,753

All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable - -
Restricted 1,550 1,073
Assigned 1,201 724
Unassigned (167) (146)

Reserved 261
Unreserved, designated reported in:

Special revenue funds 216
Unreserved, reported in:

Special revenue funds 1,120
Debt service funds -
Capital projects funds 1,008

Total All Other Governmental Funds 2,605 2,584 1,651
Total All Governmental Funds $ 8,828 $ 9,999 $ 9,404

*Note: The City adopted GASB 54 starting in fiscal year 2011 which changed how fund bal
is presented in the CAFR

Source: City of Los Alamitos, Finance Department

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$ 6 $ 8 $ 684 $ 59 $ 17 $ 18 $ 56
- - - - - - 3,607
- - - - - - -

3,770 7,049 7,484 7,347 7,481 7,662 4,589
4,085 1,218 (644) 3 56 49 588

- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -

7,861 8,275 7,524 7,409 7,554 7,729 8,840

- - - - - - -
888 829 1,063 1,333 764 764 1,180
898 677 390 1,001 345 129 99

(223) (1,240) - - - - (4)

1,563 266 1,453 2,334 1,109 893 1,275
$ 9,424 $ 8,541 $ 8,977 $ 9,743 $ 8,663 $ 8,622 $ 10,115

Fiscal Year
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2010 2011 2012
Revenues

Taxes $ 7,915 $ 8,027 $ 8,087
Licenses and permits 604 629 1,247
Intergovernmental 1,542 1,047 475
Charges for services 1,256 1,379 1,320
Investment earnings 39 27 15
Fines and forfeitures 622 602 450
Other 189 245 197

Total Revenues 12,167 11,956 11,791

Expenditures
General government 2,132 1,892 2,106
Public safety 4,923 4,748 4,913
Community development 562 526 623
Recreation and community services 1,517 1,527 1,570
Public works 1,717 1,654 1,779
Capital outlay 1,260 523 1,183
Debt service:

Principal retirement 61 60 65
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - -
Interest and fiscal charges 152 150 147

Total Expenditures 12,324 11,080 12,386

Excess of revenues over/(under) expenditures (157) 876 (595)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 635 960 715
Transfers out (546) (621) (715)
Refunding bonds issued - - -
Bond premium - - -
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - - -

Total other financing sources 89 339 -

Net change in fund balances $ (68) $ 1,215 $ (595)

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital expenditures 1.925% 1.966% 1.878%

(1) Increase in debt service related to issuance of 2015 Certificates of Participation

Source: City of Los Alamitos, Administrative Services Department

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS

(amounts expressed in thousands)
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

98



2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$ 9,042 $ 9,420 $ 10,337 $ 10,559 $ 10,724 $ 11,078 11,600
694 937 205 225 272 814 831
531 150 1,609 245 609 323 294

1,752 1,396 1,403 1,459 1,202 1,169 1,121
9 2 30 86 63 106 271

615 710 737 781 810 844 900
36 581 454 460 476 398 349

12,679 13,196 14,775 13,815 14,156 14,732 15,366

1,900 2,097 2,379 2,735 2,029 2,243 2,299
5,280 5,874 5,513 5,711 5,777 5,751 5,886

737 830 694 657 715 1,044 928
1,889 1,620 1,730 1,739 1,646 1,598 1,590
1,831 1,686 1,771 1,963 1,963 1,943 2,064

806 1,744 830 213 1,972 1,068 332

72 70 76 75 70 70 70
- - - 220 - - -
144 141 138 311 142 140 139

12,659 14,062 13,131 13,624 14,314 13,857 13,308

20 (866) 1,644 191 (158) 875 2,058

588 606 684 681 1,280 832 597
(588) (621) (1,892) (1,203) (2,201) (1,752) (1,157)
- - - 3,685 - -
- - - 133 - -
- - - (2,722) - -
- (15) (1,208) 574 (921) (920) (560)

$ 20 $ (881) $ 436 $ 765 $ (1,079) $ (45) 1,498

1.765% 1.598% 1.813% 2.865% 1.713% 1.640% 1.611%
(1)

Fiscal Year
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Category 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Residential 897,118$     925,857$      935,865$ 957,266$ 994,876$ 1,057,040$ 
Commercial 289,009 283,221 278,086 288,363 288,722 309,701
Industrial 248,721 246,247 247,130 252,384 253,201 253,653
Institutional 62 - - - - - 
Miscellaneous 1,753 1,749 1,762 1,797 - - 
Recreational - - - - - - 
Vacant land 876 - - - 8,917 8,449
SBE Nonunitary 222 222 222 222 222 222
Cross Reference 3,285 3,477 3,367 4,327 3,453 3,265
Unsecured 148,625 155,295 138,185 134,342 119,933 143,801
Other - - - - - - 

Totals 1,589,671$ 1,616,068$ 1,604,617$ 1,638,701$ 1,669,324$ 1,776,131$ 

Direct rate 0.10067% 0.10066% 0.10066% 0.10067% 0.10090% 0.11700%

Note:

Source: HdL Coren and Cone, Orange County Assessor Tax Rate Table

In 1978, the voters of the State of California passed Proposition 13 which limited
property taxes to a total maximum rate of 1% based upon the assessed value of the
property being taxed. Each year the assessed value of property may be increased by
an inflation factor (limited to a maximum increase of 2%). With few exceptions,
property is only reassessed at the time that it is sold to a new owner. At that point,
the new assessed value is reassessed at the purchase price of the property sold.
The assessed valuation data shown above represents the only data currently
available with respect to the actual market value of taxable property and is subject to
the limitations described above.

(amounts expressed in thousands)

2018/19 Use Category Summary-Basic Property Value Table
Last Ten Fiscal Years

CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS
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2016 2017 2018 2019
1,117,850$ 1,165,824$ 1,200,335$ 1,266,083$ 

351,113 358,116 393,211 405,241
260,291 268,534 292,689 308,001

- - - - 
- - - 1,793
- - - - 

9,710 9,905 11,648 10,088
222 222 222 970

3,083 3,998 4,139 4,109
138,386 154,478 163,741 161,257

- - - - 

1,880,655$ 1,961,077$ 2,065,985$ 2,157,542$ 

0.11600% 0.11600% 0.11600% 0.11600%

101



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

102



Fiscal Year
Ended

June 30

2010 1,440,825 148,847 - 1,589,672 0.117
2011 1,460,551 155,517 - 1,616,068 0.117
2012 1,466,210 138,407 - 1,604,617 0.117
2013 1,504,137 134,564 - 1,638,701 0.117
2014 1,549,169 120,155 - 1,788,869 0.117
2015 1,632,108 144,023 - 1,776,131 0.117
2016 1,742,048 138,608 - 1,880,656 0.116
2017 1,806,599 154,478 - 1,961,077 0.116
2018 1,902,244 163,741 - 2,065,985 0.116
2019 1,996,284 160,953 2,157,237 0.116

(2)  Total includes Nonunitary Taxable Assessed Values.

Note:

Source: HdL Coren and Cone, Orange County Assessor Combined Tax Rolls

CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)

(1) Exemptions are netted against the individual property categories.

Secured Unsecured Exemptions (1) Value (2)
Less: Assessed

Taxable Direct
Tax
Rate

Total

In 1978, the voters of the State of California passed Proposition 13 which limited property taxes to a
total maximum rate of 1% based upon the assessed value of the property being taxed. Each year
the assessed value of property may be increased by an inflation factor (limited to a maximum
increase of 2%). With few exceptions, property is only reassessed at the time that it is sold to a new
owner. At that point, the new assessed value is reassessed at the purchase price of the property
sold. The assessed valuation data shown above represents the only data currently available with
respect to the actual market value of taxable property and is subject to the limitations described
above.
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CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
(Rate per $100 of assessed value)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

City Direct Rate 0.117 0.117 0.117 0.117 0.117 0.117

Overlapping Rates:
Los Alamitos City General Fund 0.101 0.101 0.101 0.101 0.101 0.101
Los Alamitos City Lighting Reorganization 0.016 0.016 0.016 0.016 0.016 0.016
Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund 0.144 0.144 0.144 0.144 0.144 0.144
Los Alamitos Unified General Fund 0.412 0.412 0.412 0.412 0.412 0.411
North Orange Co. Community College District 0.059 0.059 0.059 0.059 0.059 0.059
Orange County Department of Education 0.031 0.031 0.031 0.031 0.031 0.031
Orange County Fire Authority 0.095 0.095 0.095 0.095 0.095 0.095
Orange County Flood Control District General 0.017 0.017 0.017 0.017 0.017 0.017
Orange County General Fund 0.052 0.052 0.052 0.052 0.052 0.052
Orange County Harbors Beaches & Parks Csa 0.013 0.013 0.013 0.013 0.013 0.013
Orange County Library District General Fund 0.014 0.014 0.014 0.014 0.014 0.014
Orange County Sanitation District 3 Operating 0.027 0.027 0.027 0.027 0.027 0.027
Orange County Transportation Authority 0.002 0.002 0.002 0.002 0.002 0.002
Orange County Vector Control 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.001 0.001
Orange County Water District 0.006 0.006 0.006 0.006 0.006 0.006
Orange County Water District reserve 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.001
Rossmoor/Los Alamitos Sewer District 0.010 0.010 0.010 0.010 0.010 0.010

Total Prop 13 Rate 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

Anaheim High School District 0.026 0.027 0.027 0.029 0.026 0.024
Cypress Elementary 0.022 0.026 0.015 0.025 0.027 0.023
Garden Grove Unified School District 0.000 0.033 0.025 0.031 0.037 0.041
Los Alamitos Sfid 0.020 0.033 0.036 0.042 0.056 0.048
Metropolitan Water District 0.004 0.004 0.004 0.004 0.003 0.004
N. Orange County Community College 0.018 0.017 0.017 0.019 0.017 0.017

Total Voter Approved tax Rate 0.089 0.141 0.124 0.150 0.166 0.157

Total Tax Rate 1.089 1.141 1.124 1.150 1.166 1.157

Source: HdL Coren and Cone, Orange County Assessor 2009/2010 - 2018/2019 Tax Rate Table
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2016 2017 2018 2019

0.116 0.116 0.116 0.116

0.101 0.101 0.101 0.101
0.016 0.016 0.016 0.016
0.145 0.145 0.145 0.145
0.412 0.412 0.412 0.412
0.059 0.059 0.059 0.059
0.031 0.031 0.031 0.031
0.095 0.095 0.095 0.095
0.017 0.017 0.017 0.017
0.052 0.052 0.052 0.052
0.013 0.013 0.013 0.013
0.014 0.014 0.014 0.014
0.027 0.027 0.027 0.027
0.002 0.002 0.002 0.002
0.001 0.001 0.001 0.001
0.006 0.006 0.006 0.006
0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
0.010 0.010 0.010 0.010

1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

0.049 0.043 0.022 0.042
0.025 0.024 0.031 0.030
0.047 0.045 0.075 0.068
0.052 0.048 0.047 0.049
0.004 0.004 0.004 0.004
0.030 0.029 0.029 0.028

0.207 0.192 0.207 0.221

1.207 1.192 1.207 1.220
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Percent of Percent of
Total City Total City

Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Value Value Value Value

Los Alamitos Medical Center $ 120,908 5.604% $ 58,616 3.687%
Los Alamitos Corporation Center JV 59,636 2.764%
Trend Offset Printing Inc. 47,700 2.211% 46,617 2.932%
Don Wilson Staples LLC 37,298 1.729% 32,832 2.065%
Bar Bakers LLC 20,917 0.969%
CGM Katella LLC 19,258 0.893%
JCB Inc Tinicum Corporation 18,726 0.868% 16,454 1.035%
Ganahl Lumber Company 16,748 0.776% 14,967 0.942%
Bayport Los Alamitos Associates LP 13,639 0.632% 12,051 0.758%
Katella Property Owner LLC 13,198 0.612%
Henrietta C. Le Trust Los Alamitos Corp 52,923 3.329%
Davenport KCC Partners LLC 16,449 1.035%
Arrowhead Products Corporation 10,960 0.689%
ESS WCOT Owner LLC 10,310 0.649%
Top Ten Totals $ 368,028 17.058% $ 272,179 17.122%

City Totals $ 2,157,541 $ 1,589,671

Source: HdL Coren and Cone, Orange County Assessor 2009/10 and 2018/19 Tax Rolls

CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS
Principal Property Tax Payers
Current Year and Ten Years Ago

2019 2010

(amounts expressed in thousands)

106



Fiscal
Year

Ended
June 30

2010 1,677,973 1,358,634 80.969% 56,169 1,414,803 84.316%
2011 1,706,675 1,656,579 97.065% 37,679 1,694,258 99.272%
2012 1,863,810 1,776,861 95.335% 36,779 1,813,640 97.308%
2013 2,013,958 1,959,000 97.271% 24,090 1,983,090 98.467%
2014 2,010,346 1,981,110 98.546% 24,524 2,005,634 99.766%
2015 2,130,906 2,081,181 97.666% 19,659 2,100,840 98.589%
2016 2,261,032 2,220,841 98.222% 18,519 2,239,360 99.041%
2017 2,347,295 2,314,148 98.588% 17,812 2,331,960 99.347%
2018 2,457,342 2,440,391 99.310% 16,019 2,456,410 99.962%
2019 2,679,049 2,629,318 98.144% 16,951 2,646,269 98.776%

(1)    Total  amount  of  delinquent  taxes collected in each fiscal year; information regarding levy year to
        which delinquent tax collections pertain is not provided by the Orange County Auditor- Controller.

Source: Orange County Auditor - Controller

Taxes Levied
for the Percent

Fiscal Year

Collections Fiscal Year of Levy

Amount of Levy

Total Collections to Date
Percent

Years (1) Amount of Levy
for Prior

Collected within the

CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(amounts expressed in thousands)
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Debt as a
Percentage Debt

Fiscal Capital of Personal Per
Year Lease Income1 Capita1

2010 $ 3,235 - $ 3,235 0.781% $265.14
2011 $ 3,175 - $ 3,175 0.789% $258.76
2012 $ 3,110 - $ 3,110 0.743% $269.10
2013 $ 3,055 - $ 3,055 0.693% $262.77
2014 $ 2,970 - $ 2,970 0.668% $253.22
2015 $ 2,895 - $ 2,895 0.662% $246.91
2016 $ 3,685 - $ 3,685 0.874% $313.94
2017 $ 3,615 270 $ 3,885 0.912% $330.95
2018 $ 3,545 204 $ 3,749 0.871% $319.36
2019 $ 3,475 137 $ 3,612 0.869% $308.16

1 Ratio is calculated using personal income and population data for the prior calendar year.

Source: City of Los Alamitos, Finance Department

(amounts expressed in thousands, except per capita)

CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities

Government
Primary

Total

Participation

Certificates
of
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(amounts expressed in thousands)

2018-2019 Taxable Assessed Valuation: $ 2,157,237
City's

Total Percent Share
Debt Applicable of Debt

6/30/2019 to City (1) 6/30/2019
DIRECT DEBT
Vehicle Lease Debt $ 137 100.000% 137
Bonded Debt 3,475 100.000% 3,475

TOTAL DIRECT DEBT $ 3,612

OVERLAPPING DEBT:
Anaheim High 2002 Bond Series 2003 $ 18,744 0.076% $ 14
Anaheim High 2002 Bond Series 2002A 45,674 0.076% 35
Los Alamitos SFID #1 2008 Series 2009 25,385 22.746% 5,774
Cypress Elementary 2008 Bond Series A 14,334 0.499% 72
Garden Grove USD 2010 Series A&B 2,125 0.009% -
Los Alamitos SFID #1 2008 Series 2010 2,000 22.746% 455
Los Alamitos SFID #1 2008 Series 2010C 2,000 22.746% 455
Garden Grove USD 2010 Series B 118,100 0.009% 11
Los Alamitos SFID #1 208 Series D 19,000 22.746% 4,322
Cypress Elementary 2008 Bond, Series B1 & B2 22,955 0.499% 115
Los Alamitos SFID #1 208 Series E 106,320 22.746% 24,184
Garden Grove USD 2010 Series C 117,215 0.009% 11
Anaheim High 2014 Bond Series 2015 47,045 0.076% 36
Garden Grove USD 2016 Series 2017 158,750 0.009% 14
Anaheim High 2018 Bond Series 2014 83,000 0.076% 63
Metropolitan Water District 9,744 0.411% $ 40

TOTAL OVERLAPPING DEBT 35,601

TOTAL DIRECT & OVERLAPPING DEBT $ 39,213

(1) Percentage of overlapping agency's assessed valuation located within the boundaries of the City.
(2)

Ratios to Assessed Valuation:
Total Direct Debt…………………………………………… 0.17%
Overlapping Debt……………………………………………1.65%
Net Combined Total Debt……………………………………1.82%

Source - HdL Coren & Cone, Orange County Assossor and Auditor Combined 2018/19 Lien Date Tax Rolls

CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activity Debt
As of June 30, 2019

Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and tax allocation 
bonds and non-bonded capital lease obligations.  Qualified Zone Academy Bonds are included based 
on principal due at maturity.      
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Legal Debt Margin Calculation for the Current Year
Assessed value $ 2,157,237,419
Debt limit (15% of assessed value) 323,585,613
Debt applicable to limit 0

Legal debt margin - Current Year $ 323,585,613

Fiscal
Year

2010 238,450,720 0 237,073,010 0
2011 242,410,136 0 238,450,720 0
2012 240,628,038 0 240,628,038 0
2013 245,805,113 0 245,805,113 0
2014 250,398,597 0 250,398,597 0
2015 266,419,511 0 266,419,511 0
2016 282,098,369 0 282,098,369 0
2017 294,161,529 0 294,161,529 0
2018 309,897,790 0 309,897,790 0
2019 323,585,613 3,612,467 319,973,146 1.12%

Source: City of Los Alamitos, Finance Department

CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS
Legal Debt Margin Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

to LimitLimit

Debt as
Percentage

of LimitMargin
Debt

Debt
Applicable Debt

Legal
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Personal Per Capita
Calendar Income Personal Unemployment

Year Population (in thousands) Income Rate

2009 12,201 414,466 33,970 5.00%
2010 12,270 402,640 32,815 5.30%
2011 11,557 418,606 36,221 4.80%
2012 11,626 440,823 37,917 3.10%
2013 11,729 444,811 37,924 2.70%
2014 11,725 437,214 37,289 5.50%
2015 11,738 421,786 35,933 4.50%
2016 11,739 425,943 36,284 4.00%
2017 11,863 430,396 36,280 4.00%
2018 11,721 415,852 35,479 3.20%

Sources: Population: California State Department of Finance
Unemployment Rate: California Employment Development Department
Personal Income and Per Capita Income: ESRI

Last Ten Calendar Years
Demographic and Economic Statistics
CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

 $30,000

 $31,000

 $32,000

 $33,000

 $34,000

 $35,000

 $36,000

 $37,000

 $38,000

 $39,000

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Per Capita Personal Income and Unemployment

Per Capita Personal Income Unemployment
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Function/Program 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

General Government
City Council 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Administration 9 8 8 8 8 8 8

Community Development
Administration 2 2 2 1 1 1 1
Planning 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Code Enforcement 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Police
Administration 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Patrol 18 19 19 19 19 19 19
Investigation 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Records 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Crossing Guards 2 2 2 3 3 3 3
Other PD Support 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Public Works
Admin/Engineering 2 1 1 1 1 1 1
Maintenance 11 10 10 10 10 10 10
Mechanic 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Recreation & Community Services
Administration 4 4 4 5 5 5 5
Recreation/Cultural 19 18 17 15 15 15 15

Source: City of Los Alamitos, Administrative Services Department

CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS
Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2017 2018 2019

5 5 5
8 8 8

1 1 1
1 1 1
1 1 1

4 4 4
19 18 18
3 3 3
2 2 2
1 1 1
2 2 2

1 1 1
10 9 9
1 0 0

5 4 4
14 11 11
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Function/Program 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Community Development
Number of:

Business licenses 1,900 1,921 2,048 1,964 2,089 2,227
Plan checks 74 105 119 141 110 95
NPDES inspections 53 240 152 126 57 104
Code violations 442 402 352 97 147 121

Police
Number of:

Part 1 crimes 326 347 356 433 330 299
Parking violations 2,382 2,389 1,893 1,532 1,766 3,283
Traffic (moving) violations 1,848 1,810 1,877 2,177 2,354 1,786
Incident & crime reports 1,380 1,320 1,356 1,361 1,293 1,381

Public Works

Square yd of street resurfacing/repair 64,600 2,500 11,600 38,800 20,000 15,000
Miles of street sweeping 33 33 33 33 33 33
Number of:

Street signal maintained 24 24 24 24 25 25
Trees pruned per year 200 500 1,230 632 620 615
Square feet graffiti removal 1,800 1,700 1,625 1,650 1,550 1,245

Recreation & Community Services
Total in attendance:

Aquatics 210,000 215,000 225,000 230,000 232,000 235,000
Community Services/Seniors 10,000 9,500 9,700 9,800 10,500 10,500
Day Camp 2,400 2,500 2,500 2,600 2,800 2,900
Park Program 1,000 1,100 1,250 1,400 2,600 4,385
Sports N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Classes 6,500 6,600 6,400 6,400 6,300 6,900
Special Events 35,000 36,000 37,900 40,000 41,470 34,200

NA - Not Available

Source: City of Los Alamitos, Finance Department

CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS
Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2016 2017 2018 2019

2,169 2,068 2,153 1,806
96 93 108 98
60 60 157 85

267 267 483 420

252 268 209 193
3,963 2,997 4,043 4,221
1,473 2,885 1,430 1,114
1,167 1,254 896 752

- - - -
33 33 33 33

25 25 25 25
991 991 991 991

1,205 1,205 1,205 1,205

163,000 0 0 0
13,180 14,000 14,100 18,390
2,800 3,000 4,040 3,500
4,262 4,140 4,040 3,000

35,500 30,000 30,500 28,234
8,900 8,900 8,800 10,300

30,475 34,820 35,000 38,225
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Function/Program 2010 2011 2012 2013
.

Community Develoment
Code enforcement vehicles 1 1 1 1

Police
Stations 1 1 1 1
Patrol Vehicles 8 8 7 7
Other Vehicles 9 9 8 8

Public Works
Streets (Miles) 32.9 32.9 32.9 32.9
Street lights 910 910 910 910
Traffic signals 24 24 24 24
Public works vehicles 12 12 13 13

Recreation & Community Services
Youth centers 1 1 1 1
Community centers 1 1 1 1
Parks 9 9 9 9
Community service vehicles 2 2 2 2

Source: City of Los Alamitos, Administrative Services Department

CITY OF LOS ALAMITOS
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

1 1 1 1 1 1

1 1 1 1 1 1
7 7 7 8 8 8
9 9 9 9 9 9

32.9 32.9 32.9 32.9 32.9 32.9
911 911 911 911 911 911
25 25 25 25 25 25
13 13 13 13 11 11

1 1 1 1 1 1
1 1 1 1 1 1
9 9 9 9 9 9
2 2 2 2 3 3
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December 24, 2019 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Los Alamitos, California 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Los Alamitos, California (the City), for the year ended 
June 30, 2019. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our 
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards and the 
Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We 
have communicated such information in our letter to you dated May 17, 2019. Professional standards 
also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings 
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the City are described in the notes to the financial statements.  
 
As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the City changed accounting policies related to certain 
debt disclosures by adopting Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB Statement)  
No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements, in fiscal 
year 2018-2019. Accordingly, the cumulative effect of the accounting change as of the beginning of the 
year is reported in the financial statement footnote disclosures. 
 
We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in 
the proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions 
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance 
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the City’s financial statements 
was: 
 

Management’s estimates of its net pension liability and net other post-employment 
benefits liability based on actuarial valuation specialist assumptions. We evaluated the 
key factors and assumptions used to develop the net pension liability and net other 
postemployment benefits liability in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

 
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Los Alamitos, California 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a 
result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the 
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.  
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit. 
 
Management Representations 
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated December 24, 2019. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, 
there were no such consultations with other accountants. 
 
Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to the management discussion and analysis, budgetary 
comparison schedule for the general fund, the schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability, 
the schedule of plan contributions, and the schedule of changes in total OPEB liability and related ratios, 
which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our 
procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.  
 



 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Los Alamitos, California 
 
We were engaged to report on the combining statements and individual fund statements and schedules, 
which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary 
information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of 
preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior 
period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. 
We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.  
 
We were not engaged to report on the introductory sections and statistical sections, which accompany the 
financial statements but are not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on it. 
 
New Accounting Standards 
 
The following new Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements were effective 
for fiscal year 2018-2019 audit: 
 

GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Assets Retirement Obligations. 
 
GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowing and 
Direct Placements. 
 

The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements are effective in the 
following fiscal year audit and should be reviewed for proper implementation by management: 

 
Fiscal year 2019-2020 

 
GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. 
 
GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests - an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 
and No. 61. 
 

Fiscal year 2020-2021 
 
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. 
 
GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction 
Period. 
 

Fiscal year 2021-2022 
 
GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. 
 

  



 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Los Alamitos, California 
 
Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of City Council and management of the City of Los Alamitos 
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
Brea, California 
 



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Los Alamitos, California  
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the  
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of 
the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Los Alamitos, California (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our 
report thereon dated December 24, 2019. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council  
City of Los Alamitos, California 
 

 

Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control 
or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with  
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
Brea, California 
December 24, 2019 
 
 


	City of Los Alamitos - CAFR - Final 12-24-19
	City of Los Alamitos - Audit Communication Letter - Final 12-24-19
	City of Los Alamitos - Report on Internal Control - Final 12-24-19



